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          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Good morning. I

          3  am Leroy Comrie, I chair this Committee on Rules,

          4  Privileges and Elections. I'm sorry for the delay, I

          5  was at a funeral for a staff member on the Finance

          6  Committee this morning, and the BQE was a bear.

          7                 Today we have before us six

          8  candidates for our review. Ms. Carole Catherine

          9  Rimokh, a resident of Manhattan who is a direct

         10  reappointment by the Council to the Equal Employment

         11  Practices Commission for the remainder of a

         12  four-year term expiring on June 30th, 2007.

         13                 Le Ann Shelton, also a resident of

         14  Manhattan. Mayoral appointment to the Art Commission

         15  as an architect member, for the remainder of a

         16  three-year term expiring on December 31st, 2004.

         17                 Mr. Signe Nielsen, a resident of

         18  Manhattan. Mayoral appointment to the Art

         19  Commission, as landscape architect member, for the

         20  remainder of a three-year term expiring on December

         21  31st, 2003, whose appointment communication also

         22  requested a reappointment for a full three-year term

         23  to start on January 1st, 2004, that expires on

         24  December 31st, 2006.

         25                 Byron Kim, a resident of Brooklyn. A
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          2  mayoral appointment to the Art Commission as painter

          3  member for the remainder of a three-year term,

          4  expiring on December 31st, 2005.

          5                 James Philip Stuckey, resident of

          6  Staten Island. Mayoral appointment to the Art

          7  Commission as lay member, for the remainder of a

          8  three-year term expiring December 31st, 2003, whose

          9  appointment communication also requested a

         10  reappointment for a full three-year term to start on

         11  January 2004, that expires on December 31st, 2006.

         12                 Matthew Daus, a resident of Brooklyn.

         13  Mayoral reappointment to the Taxi and Limousine

         14  Commissioner for the remainder of a seven-year term

         15  that expires on January 31st, 2010.

         16                 Today the Rules, Privileges and

         17  Elections Committee will be considering Ms. Rimokh's

         18  reappointment to the Equal Employment Practices

         19  Commission.

         20                 Unfortunately, due to an unforeseen

         21  emergency, Ms. Rimokh is prevented from physically

         22  attending today's hearing; however, she is available

         23  telephonically to answer any questions that the

         24  Committee may have.

         25                 Ms. Rimokh advises the Committee that
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          2  she regrets any inconvenience caused to the Council.

          3  As you may remember, Ms. Rimokh testified before the

          4  Committee this past February. Her appearance was

          5  significantly delayed for almost three hours, due to

          6  the fact that our budget modification negotiation

          7  meetings were taking place at the same time.

          8                 In light of Ms. Rimokh's

          9  understanding the inconvenience we caused her at her

         10  initial appointment hearing, because she entirely

         11  interrupted her day, and she was very patient, as

         12  much as three hours unexplained delay could make

         13  anyone patient, we've consented to allow for this

         14  one exception for today.

         15                 In closing, I must say for the record

         16  that Ms. Rimokh's file contains no adverse

         17  information. Since her appointment she has attended

         18  all scheduled commission meetings.

         19                 At this point I'd like to introduce

         20  the Council members that are here.

         21                 To my left is Council Member Madeline

         22  Provenzano from the Bronx, Council Member Melinda

         23  Katz from Queens, Majority Leader Joe Rivera from

         24  the Bronx, walking through is Deputy Majority Leader

         25  Bill Perkins from Manhattan, Yvette Clarke from
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          2  Brooklyn, and we have Council Member Diana Reyna

          3  from Brooklyn, and joining us is Council Member John

          4  Liu from Queens.

          5                 Are there any question regarding Ms.

          6  Rimokh? Does every member of the Committee

          7  understand? She is on the line.

          8                 Good morning Ms. Rimokh.

          9                 MS. RIMOKH: Good morning, Mr.

         10  Chairman. Thank you so much to you and to the

         11  Committee for allowing me to participate by

         12  telephone this morning. I certainly am more than

         13  happy to answer any questions anyone may have. Am I

         14  coming through loud and clear?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Yes, we hear you

         16  quite loud and clear actually. We're all impressed

         17  with the technology that's coming into this old

         18  facility.

         19                 Clearly, we had kept you on hold for

         20  other three hours the last time you were here, you

         21  have served the Committee with distinction since

         22  you've been appointed. I can check with Mr. Maye,

         23  who is here, but since you have an unavoidable

         24  interruption that you cannot make the hearing, I

         25  decided as the Chair, and the Committee has not said
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          2  anything adverse to it, but we're allowing this one

          3  exception. And we appreciate you calling in. We

          4  understand you have a limited window, so we will try

          5  to be brief. And just let the Committee know that

          6  you are going for reappointment to the Equal

          7  Employment Practices Commission. We understand that

          8  you've attended all meetings that you have been

          9  required to attend, and we appreciate you calling

         10  in. And unless any members have any questions, we're

         11  prepared to let you go.

         12                 Any questions?

         13                 Seeing none from the members, we will

         14  be coupling your reappointment for a vote later, but

         15  thank you for calling in and I hope that you have a

         16  productive day.

         17                 MS. RIMOKH: Oh, thanks again so much

         18  for making this accommodation for me, I really

         19  appreciate it, and I look forward to seeing the

         20  Committee in a few years' time.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

         22                 MS. RIMOKH: Thank you. Bye-bye.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Have a good day.

         24                 Okay, we've been joined by Council

         25  Member Lou Fidler from Brooklyn and Council Member
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          2  David Weprin from Queens.

          3                 So, we will move on now to the next

          4  person, or actually a group. Le Ann Shelton. Signe

          5  Nielson, is that proper pronunciation? And Byron

          6  Kim, who are all mayoral appointments; and James

          7  Philip Stuckey, who is also mayoral appointment for

          8  the Art Commission.

          9                 The Art Commission reviews and

         10  approves all works of art to be maintained on City

         11  properties or in City buildings, advises agencies

         12  having jurisdiction over them as to methods and

         13  procedures for their proper maintenance and reviews

         14  and approves the design of City agencies erecting

         15  public structures on City property, except for

         16  landmarks or projects located in historic districts.

         17                 The Commission itself does not

         18  contract for any artwork, nor does it select

         19  contractors to negotiate fees or otherwise involve

         20  itself in a selection or approval of contractors.

         21                 The Commission brings its expertise

         22  to the process by reviewing submitted plans or work

         23  in accordance with the standards enumerated in the

         24  Charter.

         25                 The Commission is composed of the
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          2  Mayor, his representative, the president of the

          3  Metropolitan Museum of Art, the president of the New

          4  York Public Library, the president of the Brooklyn

          5  Museum, one painter, one sculptor, one architect,

          6  one landscape architect, all of whom shall be

          7  residents of the City and three other residents of

          8  this City who cannot be painters, sculptors,

          9  architects, landscape architects, or active members

         10  of any other profession in the fine arts.

         11                 The Mayor and the Museum and the

         12  Library presidents serve in an ex-officio capacity.

         13                 All members serve on the Commission

         14  without compensation. Members serve for three-year

         15  terms, or until the successor has been appointed and

         16  qualified.

         17                 As I have indicated before, the

         18  Mayor's communication concerning two candidates,

         19  Signe Nielsen and James Stuckey, provided for

         20  appointments to fill the current vacant term that

         21  expires on December 31st, 2003, and reappoints each

         22  candidate for a full term starting January 1st,

         23  2004, and ending December 31st, 2006.

         24                 Because of this, the Committee will

         25  consider each proposed term by individual
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          2  resolutions that must be voted on separately as

          3  well.

          4                 At this time, if you could raise your

          5  right hand and be sworn in by the Council, please.

          6                 MR. O'MALLEY: Do you solemnly swear

          7  and affirm the testimony you're about to give the

          8  Committee is the truth and the whole truth?

          9                 MS. SHELTON: Yes.

         10                 MS. NIELSEN: I do.

         11                 MR. KIM: I do.

         12                 MR. STUCKEY: I do.

         13                 MR. O'MALLEY: Please individually

         14  state your names for the record. Thank you.

         15                 MS. SHELTON: Le Ann Shelton.

         16                 MR. O'MALLEY: Thank you.

         17                 MS. NIELSEN: Signe Nielsen.

         18                 MR. O'MALLEY: Thank you.

         19                 MR. KIM: Byron Kim.

         20                 MR. O'MALLEY: Thank you.

         21                 MR. STUCKEY: James Philip Stuckey.

         22                 MR. O'MALLEY: Thank you.

         23                 They're sworn in, Mr. Chairman.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay, we just had

         25  a small technical update with my able counsel
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          2  keeping me informed, Mr. Ed O'Malley, who I want to

          3  thank, also the staff who has prepared the

          4  information today.

          5                 So, what we'll do, we'll go ladies

          6  first, if you don't mind, Ms. Nielsen, and Ms.

          7  Shelton, if you have an opening statement? Do you

          8  have an opening statement that you would like to

          9  make for the membership regarding your desire to

         10  serve, or anything that you'd like to say at this

         11  time?

         12                 MS. NIELSEN: Thank you. And I'm

         13  honored to be here before you. For the past 25 years

         14  I have devoted my energy and that of my firm to

         15  public open space design, primarily in New York

         16  City.

         17                 I am deeply committed to improving

         18  the quality of life for urban residents, and I'm

         19  doing it in the only way I know how, as a landscape

         20  architect and a teacher.

         21                 I, therefore, welcome the opportunity

         22  to serve on the Art Commission, because it is a

         23  valuable forum whose dialogue can improve design in

         24  the public arena.

         25                 Thank you.

                                                            13

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2                 MS. SHELTON: Good morning. My name is

          3  Le Ann Shelton. I want to thank you for the

          4  opportunity to serve on the Commission. It is a

          5  great honor to do this. I have been a resident of

          6  this City for a long time. I've worked here both as

          7  a lawyer and an architect and I feel that

          8  maintaining and really protecting the public

          9  environment is really a great purpose to be serving.

         10  Our City really is defined by its public spaces, its

         11  parks, its streets and all the manys that we share

         12  together and I think it is really our goal and our

         13  objective to make sure they're as best they can be.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Mr. Kim, do you

         16  have an opening statement?

         17                 MR. KIM: First of all, I'd also like

         18  to thank the Council for the opportunity to serve on

         19  the Commission, to be considered.

         20                 I'm an artist. I've been an artist

         21  for 20 years, and I've been a resident of Brooklyn

         22  for 17 years, and you can see on my resume that I'm

         23  from LaJolla, California, which is a really nice

         24  place, so my having been here for 17 years means

         25  that I really love it here and I feel strongly about
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          2  giving back. And that's it. Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

          4                 Mr. Stuckey.

          5                 MR. STUCKEY: Thank you very much. I,

          6  too, am honored to be considered by the Council.

          7  I've spent 25 years of my career, as well, 12 in

          8  government, and 13 now in the private sector working

          9  on projects throughout all five New York City

         10  boroughs, and I've always tried and worked to ensure

         11  that those projects work within the communities and

         12  bring a level of design and aesthetics that really

         13  improves communities, and it's an honor to be

         14  recommended by the Mayor and to be here before you

         15  today. Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: We've been joined

         17  by Council Member Christine Quinn from Manhattan,

         18  and also Council Member Vinnie Gentile from

         19  Brooklyn.

         20                 At this point, do we have any members

         21  that have questions? Any other members that have

         22  questions for the Art Commission?

         23                 Oh, we've been joined by Council

         24  Member Margarita Lopez. Good morning.

         25                 Okay, Council Member Katz.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Good morning,

          3  ladies and gentlemen.

          4                 I actually have, with the Chair's

          5  permission, I have a question about the Art

          6  Commission itself. May I bring it up? I know the

          7  Executive Director has joined us and we have spoken

          8  about the fact that I may ask her to come up. Is

          9  that agreeable with the Chair? If the Executive

         10  Director would come up and answer just a few

         11  questions for me, that would be great.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: We'd have to

         13  swear her in. If you could identify yourself for the

         14  record.

         15                 MS. BERSHAD: Deborah Bershad,

         16  Executive Director of the Art Commission.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I thank you for

         18  being here.

         19                 MS. O'MALLEY: Do you solemnly swear

         20  or affirm the testimony you are about to give the

         21  Committee is the truth and the whole truth?

         22                 MS. BERSHAD: I do.

         23                 MR. O'MALLEY: Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Can you go over

         25  for the Committee, and maybe mostly for me, I'm not
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          2  sure that my colleagues have questions on it or not,

          3  exactly how something gets in front of the Arts

          4  Commission? What happens when it gets there? What is

          5  the criteria by which something ends up in front of

          6  your Commission and once you vote on it, what the

          7  power is of that vote?

          8                 MS. BERSHAD: The Art Commission

          9  reviews all works of art, architecture and landscape

         10  design that are on City-owned property, with certain

         11  exceptions regarding landmarks.

         12                 Projects are normally brought before

         13  the Commission by the City agencies having direct

         14  jurisdiction over that property. For example,

         15  Department of Transportation, Department of Parks

         16  and Recreation, Economic Development Corporation and

         17  other City agencies.

         18                 I'm sorry, could you repeat the

         19  second half of your question?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: What happens

         21  once you vote on it? Is that a suggestion to the

         22  City or is that mandatory?

         23                 MS. BERSHAD: The Commission has

         24  binding authority and reviews projects strictly for

         25  their aesthetic appropriateness.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So, if you say

          3  something is not appropriate, your Commission votes

          4  that something is not appropriate, then it doesn't

          5  get placed?

          6                 MS. BERSHAD: That's correct. However,

          7  the Commission in certain instances, if there is new

          8  information regarding a project, may reconsider a

          9  project. So, for example, if something comes in and

         10  the Commission rejects something, if there's new

         11  information presented the Commission can reconsider

         12  it.

         13                 Normally the Commission tries to work

         14  with the City agencies and/or applicants to achieve

         15  some kind of consensus regarding design so that

         16  there are different stages of review for various

         17  projects.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I guess there's

         19  two different things we're talking about, right? One

         20  is design and then the other is placement? So, for

         21  instance, if we placed public payphones throughout

         22  the City, the Department of Transportation quite

         23  often will write to Council members and say, you

         24  know, we want to place of these pay toilets, pay

         25  telephones, I want to place ten of those pay
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          2  telephones in your district and we want to put it A,

          3  B, C and D corner, does the Art Commission have any

          4  oversight on that?

          5                 MS. BERSHAD: In instances such as

          6  that type of street furniture, normally the

          7  Commission would review general criteria, but it

          8  depends on a case -- normally the Commission reviews

          9  projects on a case-by-case basis, and does look at

         10  specific siting issues, as well as design of the

         11  actual, if there's an actual object.

         12                 So, for example, if it's a sculpture,

         13  the Commission will look not just at the sculpture

         14  but how the sculpture is being sited within a park.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: What about those

         16  lists of phones that we get or bus shelters?

         17                 MS. BERSHAD: The Commission does

         18  review the list of phones as well.

         19                 That's usually part of the

         20  application.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I see. So when

         22  we get the list that we always get for the pay

         23  phones, you guys have already seen it and voted on

         24  it, and we can assume that you've already

         25  established that it's an appropriate place
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          2  aesthetically for the phones to go and for bus

          3  shelters to go and things like that?

          4                 MS. BERSHAD: Because you're talking

          5  about such, I mean these are very particular types

          6  of projects with very numerous types of placements.

          7                 Usually the Commission is relying on

          8  the agency to provide a criteria for a placement.

          9  But the Commission does review the list.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So, it's not

         11  like every single thing goes on, the Commission

         12  votes, you review the list, you review the criteria

         13  and perhaps if the criteria is okay, then it goes in

         14  as a lump project maybe?

         15                 MS. BERSHAD: Well, for example, in

         16  streetscape designs when you have installations of

         17  lighting, the Commission will look at the overall

         18  neighborhood and see if the lights that are being

         19  proposed are appropriate. So yes, that would be an

         20  instance where the Commission may not look at every

         21  individual block.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Do you place

         23  every single newsstand in the City? Does that go

         24  through you, as well? Any new newsstand?

         25                 MS. BERSHAD: Siting of newsstands
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          2  does.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Siting of

          4  newsstands.

          5                 MS. BERSHAD: And in that instance,

          6  because you're talking about a total of

          7  approximately 300 newsstands in New York City, it's

          8  a slightly different instance, where as opposed to

          9  lighting where you're talking about thousands of

         10  street lights or payphones, where you're talking

         11  again about thousands of payphones.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Can you, if the

         13  Chair agrees, I would love to have the criteria that

         14  the Art Commission uses, because I just don't know.

         15  If there's anything written as far as the criteria

         16  you need to establish for design, as well as

         17  placement of all these different types of street

         18  furniture, that would be very helpful; is there

         19  anything like that?

         20                 MS. BERSHAD: Like I said, the

         21  Commission usually reviews these projects on a

         22  case-by-case basis, and because New York City is

         23  such a diverse conglomeration of different and

         24  discreet neighborhoods, each with their own

         25  individual character, the Commission has been loathe
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          2  in the past to establish rigid criteria for

          3  installations.

          4                 The Commission does try to work, as I

          5  said, with the applicants so that they can

          6  understand the process more clearly, and so that

          7  they can get through the approval process as quickly

          8  as possible. There's nothing --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So there's

         10  nothing really in writing. It's basically just the

         11  aesthetic beauty of the area and maybe of the

         12  design?

         13                 MS. BERSHAD: Well, what's appropriate

         14  for an area, yes, and the siting.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: As you know, I'm

         16  Chair of Land Use Committee and we're dealing with a

         17  lot of the street furniture issues. Has the Art

         18  Commission been spoken with regarding street

         19  furniture? The authorizing resolution that we're

         20  doing today on pay toilets, bus shelters and

         21  newsstands?

         22                 MS. BERSHAD: The Commission has not,

         23  the Commission members have not weighed in on this

         24  issue.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I guess
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          2  technically from what you're saying, you would have

          3  to sign off on the final design of this project,

          4  correct? Or not?

          5                 MS. BERSHAD: That is correct.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So the

          7  authorizing resolution, the authorizing resolution

          8  basically -- and I apologize, Mr. Chair, but I think

          9  this is an important issue, considering we're voting

         10  on it today in the Council.

         11                 The authorizing resolution talks

         12  about the Department of Transportation coming up

         13  with criteria and standards by which street

         14  furniture will be placed on the street.

         15                 We can assume then the Art Commission

         16  will basically have the final say or sign-off on the

         17  design of that street furniture?

         18                 MS. BERSHAD: The Commission will be

         19  working, I'm sure, with the Department of

         20  Transportation on this process as they go forward.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Do you work on

         22  the design, or you just work on the amount of art or

         23  aesthetics that would be on a facility?

         24                 If somebody comes to you with a

         25  design to say the newsstands want to look like ten
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          2  by 14 shape, you don't change the physical size of

          3  it, you're looking at how much artwork can or cannot

          4  be allowed on the building?

          5                 MS. BERSHAD: The Commission looks at

          6  both the scale and the relationship to the site, as

          7  well as the actual design.

          8                 So, in some instances, the size of

          9  these, let's say you mentioned newsstands, might be

         10  an issue, but that would depend again --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: You rule on their

         12  size as well as --

         13                 MS. BERSHAD: If the Commission felt

         14  that the scale was inappropriate, they might comment

         15  that the scale was inappropriate and ask the

         16  applicant restudy that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I'm sorry, I

         18  didn't mean to cut in.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: No, it's fine.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: This is a repeat

         21  of yesterday almost.

         22                 Any other questions?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I'm fine.

         24                 I think that I want to apologize to

         25  the applicants. I thank Deborah very much.
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          2                 MS. BERSHAD: You're very welcome,

          3  Council Member.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: What's your last

          5  name, I'm sorry?

          6                 MS. BERSHAD: Bershad.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Bershad, sorry.

          8  Thank you.

          9                 The applicants seem like they'd be

         10  very interested in this position. I think that the

         11  one thing I would just say about the Commission is

         12  the Executive Director answered the questions I

         13  think as best that can be answered, but I would like

         14  to see at some point in the future, and maybe the

         15  new members hopefully after today will keep this in

         16  mind as well, that I'd love to see some sort of

         17  formal criteria about the Art Commission, how they

         18  make their decisions, what the criteria is, what the

         19  standards are, exactly what their influence is

         20  regarding what happens with other agencies. I think

         21  that would be important for us to note.

         22                 As far as the candidates go, I only

         23  know Mr. Stuckey personally, and he's been very

         24  helpful and respectful in working in Forest City, I

         25  believe it was, in our district. And I don't want to
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          2  take up any more time than I have already. And I

          3  thank you for working for the City.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you,

          5  Council Member Katz.

          6                 Council Member Liu, then Council

          7  Member Provenzano.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you very

          9  much, Mr. Chairman.

         10                 I just had, I was wondering what the

         11  views are of all four candidates for the

         12  commissionership as to what factors, other than

         13  aesthetics, which in my view would include design,

         14  and I know I'm probably butchering the terminology

         15  here, but what factors other than design and

         16  aesthetics and context and placement could go into

         17  your judgment and whether a work of art would be

         18  appropriate for a City property such as a park?

         19                 And specifically I am interested in

         20  your view on the building of new monuments within

         21  the City of New York.

         22                 MR. KIM: One of the things that I

         23  like to think about is whether it's an interesting

         24  or elegant idea that is behind the artwork. This is

         25  something that's of course inseparable from how it
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          2  looks or whether it's beautiful visually and

          3  physically.

          4                 I wonder if I can come up with an

          5  example off the top of my head. The only one that's

          6  coming is say in the subway at Chambers Street the

          7  mosaic of the eyes. I don't know if you've ever seen

          8  those. I think, if I remember correctly, those were

          9  taken from school children in the area. I think.

         10  Maybe a local high school. And I think it's a

         11  beautiful looking project, this mosaic, but also

         12  it's really interesting that these eyes were taken

         13  from the various diverse children from the

         14  neighborhoods.

         15                 MS. SHELTON: One of the criteria for

         16  me for judging the appropriateness of the art is

         17  really whether it expresses a view of not just the

         18  one person, the artist, but really of a bigger

         19  community, and for memorials as well. I think here

         20  in New York we have some artistic installations that

         21  are selected through a competitive process, downtown

         22  Manhattan, for instance, but other areas also, and

         23  that allows a bigger, a broader audience to

         24  participate in the envisioning process. I think that

         25  the artist who is chosen to do the work of the
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          2  smaller scale project also has the responsibility to

          3  think outside of himself and to really think about

          4  other people's point of view.

          5                 MS. NIELSEN: When I think about a

          6  work of art, aside from what's already been said

          7  that I agree with, it would be the public benefit,

          8  and I think that this applies very specifically to

          9  monuments and memorials.

         10                 So, for example, will it have some

         11  long lasting educational value, some way that people

         12  can look at it 25 years, 100 years from now and

         13  understand why that event or person had a

         14  significant contribution and why they are being

         15  memorialized in some way.

         16                 I also think about whether the

         17  project, the work of art, the monument, has some

         18  environmental sensitivity to both its context and

         19  the City; will it have long-term viability? Will it

         20  become the maintenance burden on the City in the

         21  long run? So, I see a number of different factors

         22  all related to what I call public benefit.

         23                 MR. STUCKEY: I believe in the

         24  longevity. I believe there have been improvements

         25  made in New York City, Battery Park City's
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          2  Promenade, for example, which have longlasting and

          3  incredibly positive effects on the City, both in

          4  terms of where it's located and for all of New York

          5  City.

          6                 I think that all art and all

          7  monuments, in your particular question, needs to be

          8  thought of in its context and in its environment.

          9  Projects generally need to be thought of as an

         10  environment. To just simply plop down a piece of

         11  sculpture or a monument for the sake of saying we

         12  have art, I don't think really achieves an

         13  objective, I think it needs to be sensitive to the

         14  area that it's being placed within, the neighborhood

         15  that it's being placed within, and the history that

         16  it's attempt to connote and the message it's

         17  attempting to send.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Mr. Chairman, a

         19  quick follow-up to Ms. Shelton.

         20                 You mentioned in your comments that

         21  you'd be interesting in what the community thinks of

         22  a particular project. Now, that seems to be outside

         23  what we would generally consider the design aspect

         24  of a particular monument.

         25                 It's factoring what I would consider

                                                            29

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  a political element. Is that something that members

          3  of the art Commission could be engaged in?

          4                 MS. SHELTON: I don't think it's

          5  necessarily a political statement. Some of the work

          6  that we'll be looking at would be, for instance, a

          7  streetscape installation where the community

          8  expresses an interest or a desire to have something

          9  in about their community leaders or the history of

         10  the community, whether it's a placque or medallion,

         11  and that is something that they can participate in,

         12  both in who's memorialized, how it's done. They may

         13  present an artist who they would like to see done,

         14  you know, who does the artwork itself, so there are

         15  opportunities to bring in the broader audience and

         16  not engage in this, an openly kind of debate about

         17  it. It's really one of the opportunities I think are

         18  important for the everyday person and their

         19  community to see that their outlook is

         20  representative of their history.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: I think there is

         22  going to be activity in the City with regard to

         23  proposed monuments that honor the veterans and in

         24  other ways may commemorate conflicts.

         25                 In my area I am looking to create a
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          2  new monument honoring the veterans of, what has up

          3  to this point been known as "the forgotten war," the

          4  Korean conflict, and I look forward to working with

          5  all of you in making sure that we develop an asset

          6  to the community and an asset to the City.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

          8  Provenzano.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you,

         10  Mr. Chair.

         11                 First I would like to compliment and

         12  thank the four of you. You may or may not know that

         13  these red books in front of us, this is your life.

         14  So, the questions that were asked of you in your

         15  preinterviews and your responses are all in here,

         16  and actually I'm pretty impressed by all of you, so

         17  I want to thank you for your responses that you did

         18  give, and also to let you know that that whole

         19  preinterview stuff was not in vain.

         20                 I think you also should be prepared

         21  to know that when we talk Art Commission, you know,

         22  generally folks think, painting, sculpture, what

         23  have you, but there are lots of other things that go

         24  before the Commission, and a lot of we Council

         25  members often get a little bent out of shape because
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          2  we're saying, well, what in the world does that have

          3  to go to the Art Commission for? It has absolutely

          4  nothing to do with the Art Commission.

          5                 And there is a little bit of history,

          6  I think, in the Council's relationship with the Art

          7  Commission, but it's a little less rocky than it has

          8  been.

          9                 But I do have one question, and I

         10  think it relates to my concern about some of the

         11  things going to the Commission that we don't

         12  necessarily think fit into the whole scope of what

         13  the Commission is about, but, you know, maybe in

         14  your positions with the Commission you'll be

         15  changing that.

         16                 Do you believe that public art should

         17  on some level, and you know public art is a whole

         18  wide scope, be utilitarian, that it should inhabit a

         19  public space usefully, purposefully or should its

         20  concerns be purely aesthetic, and I think Ms.

         21  Nielsen, you kind of answered that in part, but as I

         22  say, a lot of the things that we see go before the

         23  Art Commission, you know, we think they're more

         24  useful than really aesthetic and so I would just

         25  like to get some of your input.
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          2                 I think over the past years it's

          3  been, and I keep repeating myself, but more

          4  aesthetic thank I think now. For instance, when

          5  we're talking about public toilets, you know.

          6                 MR. KIM: I think public toilets

          7  really shouldn't be aesthetic.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I'm with

          9  you.

         10                 MR. KIM: I was just making a joke.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: When you

         12  go to Paris they are.

         13                 MR. KIM: But there has to be a toilet

         14  in there that you can use. A lot of work in museums

         15  is not purely aesthetic. There are very few artists

         16  who have taken the position that their work, you

         17  know, doesn't respond to, doesn't need to respond to

         18  an audience, and I'm talking about art in a museum.

         19  You know, clearly art in a more public sphere,

         20  public art, has to respond in some way. You know, it

         21  just can't be sitting there with its back to the

         22  audience.

         23                 That can happen in a museum on a

         24  gallery, and even then it doesn't happen that often.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          3                 MS. SHELTON: I think that this is

          4  part of the difficulty with all these artistic

          5  architectural endeavors, is it has to be both

          6  functional but it also has to satisfy an aesthetic

          7  need for people.

          8                 I think that a toilet facility can be

          9  well designed so that it is functional but it

         10  doesn't violate your sensibilities of what should be

         11  on the street. It's a little, I think people have to

         12  warm up to the idea.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Now, you

         14  are the architect?

         15                 MS. SHELTON: I'm the architect. It's

         16  a little odd I think for New Yorkers to have toilets

         17  on the street, but I think they'll probably find a

         18  way to accept it and use them and they won't be so

         19  strange after awhile. But all art doesn't have to be

         20  utilitarian. All utilitarian structures don't have

         21  to be unartistic, and one of the things that I would

         22  be interested in seeing is for some of these

         23  utilitarian structures to be more interesting. I

         24  think what they really have lost over the last 50

         25  years are civic buildings, such as the Con Ed
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          2  substantions, they just aren't of any architectural

          3  quality, and I'd like to see that come back.

          4                 I think, you know, 100 years ago we

          5  built quality buildings, and people use them,

          6  they're adapted for different uses and they're

          7  prized, but some of the more recent ones, people

          8  think they're only utilitarian, they don't have to

          9  be attractive, they don't have to improve the

         10  sidewalk. It can be there but not really serve the

         11  neighborhood, and I think that's something that you

         12  should try to rethink.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         14                 MS. NEILSEN: Excuse me, do you want

         15  me to elaborate any more? The idea of utilitarianism

         16  and art is unfortunately I think pitted against each

         17  other.

         18                 The idea that Le Ann was talking

         19  about, which is generally thinking about all objects

         20  as having firm level of -- I'm going to use a word

         21  that may sound even funnier, poetry, something that

         22  when you look at it, it is something that sort of

         23  strikes your eye.

         24                 I think one of the great things about

         25  living in New York is that every step you take along
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          2  the sidewalk you see something new, something

          3  interesting, it's never ever boring, and these blank

          4  walls of like a Con Edison substation does not

          5  enliven your experience. I don't see myself as

          6  someone who is going to say I like this and I don't

          7  like that. I don't think it's my personal taste that

          8  matters here, I think it's an idea that you want to

          9  have some level of quality, durability, because if

         10  something isn't built well, and it doesn't last,

         11  then what good has it done for the public? So I hope

         12  to bring that aspect to --

         13                 MR. STUCKEY: I think in a City as

         14  large as New York with as many people and with as

         15  many things happening as diverse as it is, it's very

         16  difficult to look at art just simply as art.

         17                 Obviously there is art in museums --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Well,

         19  you're a lay person, so we're relying on you.

         20                 MR. STUCKEY: Thank you. And I will

         21  say it, and I think this also responds perhaps to

         22  Council Member Katz' concern as well before, in my

         23  experience running an agency, we had to deal with at

         24  that time the Arts Commission as well, and I'll give

         25  you one example of a landscape architecture
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          2  situation where having a more utilitarian approach I

          3  think had a tremendous impact and that was a project

          4  in Staten Island called the Staten Island Corporate

          5  Park where the original design had a butterfly bog

          6  with over 1,000 species of butterflies, and had the

          7  Commission not paid attention, and had the designs

          8  not really focused on it, that could have been

          9  destroyed. And in fact, the project was completely

         10  redesigned to preserve that area, and in fact the

         11  corporate park became more valuable as a result of

         12  it.

         13                 So, it was a benefit all around,

         14  environmentally, as well as from the goals the City

         15  was trying to achieve at the time.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         17  I'm pretty impressed by all of you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you,

         19  Council Member.

         20                 Is Council Member Reyna in the other

         21  room? No, she stepped out. Okay.

         22                 I have just more of a statement than

         23  a question.

         24                 The Art Commission, unfortunately,

         25  often times meets when the Council meets, we're not
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          2  able to attend the meetings when we have particular

          3  projects within our districts that we like to

          4  articulate on.

          5                 My district is comprised of Jamaica,

          6  St. Albans, Hollis, Chamber Heights, the Downtown

          7  Jamaica area. Also, being the head of the Queens

          8  Council Delegation, there has been various projects

          9  that have been coming through that I've been aware

         10  of even before I got on the Council that have come

         11  before the Arts Commission. I would hope that that

         12  you, as Council Member Katz said, would hope to

         13  promulgate some standards and some rules and

         14  regulations that since you're compromising almost

         15  the majority of the Commission, we need to have at

         16  least a policy standard so that the old tensions

         17  between the Council and the Commission, the public

         18  and the Commission, you know what is art, what is

         19  aesthetic, at least could have some template that

         20  people can at least argue from. Right now there is

         21  no template that people can argue from, and while no

         22  one is questioning your credentials, all of you have

         23  impeccable credentials, art is an area that is

         24  subject to interpretation.

         25                 A lot of things that I don't think is
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          2  art, that somebody can think is beautiful, and vice

          3  versa, so I think that clearly, you know, with the

          4  Director here, we need to have at least a level of

          5  start before we can proceed, a level that people can

          6  clearly understand, you know, not necessarily the

          7  dimensions or the size, you know, but clearly the

          8  impact on the physical community, the response from

          9  the community as to what they would like to see in

         10  the community I think has to be considered primarily

         11  prior to art work.

         12                 You know, the whole issue of the five

         13  percent that is put into construction projects, I

         14  know you don't necessarily pick the artist or the

         15  contractor, but I think that we need to make sure

         16  that, or you need to make sure that whoever is

         17  picked has at least some historical knowledge of the

         18  community that they're placing the art in.

         19                 We had a couple of incidences in the

         20  Borough where they've placed art that was just

         21  totally in the parks. I had art in a couple of my

         22  parks that we had to take out, it was just not

         23  anything that had anything to do with the community

         24  or the history of the community. And I won't go into

         25  details because I don't have time, but I think that
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          2  by promulgating some standards, you know, we could

          3  definitely try to stop that and by making sure that

          4  whoever the artist is has a history and a background

          5  of the community before they design a project is

          6  something that, you guys are our last stopgap, and

          7  you have ultimate authority, so I would ask you to

          8  consider that. You know, what's the artist's

          9  responsibility to the public? You know, why is that

         10  important? You know, many believe that art exists to

         11  help the potential of our communities, then the

         12  responsibility of the Commission clearly is to make

         13  sure that those things are kept to the forefront.

         14                 But I know Mr. Stuckey has a long

         15  record in City government. I read your other life

         16  histories in the book here, and I want to

         17  congratulate you for wanting to serve the City in

         18  this capacity.

         19                 We do have one housekeeping ethics

         20  issue for all.

         21                 Oh, Council Member Lopez has a

         22  question. I'm sorry. Council Member Lopez.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I will ask all

         24  the panelists, can you tell me who those three women

         25  are? Those three in there, what do they represent?
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          2  Do you see them? We have them in the four corners of

          3  this place.

          4                 Once you get appointed to this

          5  Commission, find out who they are and tell us. It

          6  would be very good for all of us to know.

          7                 MR. KIM: Do they have something to do

          8  with the boroughs?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I think they

         10  represent probably music and things like that.

         11                 MR. STUCKEY: The bench says Kings and

         12  Queens, and I'm wondering if --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Does the Director

         14  know?

         15                 MS. BERSHAD: Yes. The four seated

         16  figures actually represent the four boroughs that

         17  existed when the City was consolidated in 1989. The

         18  two flanking figures would just be supporting

         19  figures for each borough. There were only four

         20  boroughs.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: At the time.

         22                 MS. BERSHAD: At the time. The women

         23  flanking on either side of the central female seated

         24  figure are just supporting the central female figure

         25  which is an allegory of the borough, it's an
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          2  allegorical representation of the borough, as is if

          3  you look above at the mural, above you New York City

          4  is represented as a seated female figure in the

          5  center of the composition of the mural.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you. I

          7  just asked the question not to be facetious, I don't

          8  want you to think that way. It's that I come to this

          9  Chambers and I admire the beauty of this place every

         10  time that I come, but I don't think that the public

         11  and us who sit here get the opportunity to talk

         12  about those things that I think are important and it

         13  is going to be the job of this Commission to try to

         14  bring more clarity and light about the issues that

         15  are in our City. Then maybe one thing that maybe the

         16  Commissioner should begin embracing is the program

         17  of educating elected officials of what this Chambers

         18  are about, and then subsequently the public that

         19  come to visit.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I'm impressed

         22  that they knew the answer. We thank you for that.

         23  That was great. I'm also impressed that Margarita

         24  found the only four pictures of women in here.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Don't you be
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          2  surprised about that. Because beauty is defined by

          3  the female formation of the human being.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Let's move on.

          5  I'm just glad to see that the founders of the City

          6  were enlightened enough to know that women run

          7  things. So, I'm still learning myself, being married

          8  almost 13 years. We'll see.

          9                 Back to business at hand, there is

         10  just some housekeeping issue for the Art Commission

         11  candidates. Two small things.

         12                 Each candidate should be aware that

         13  because of the possibility of either their firm or

         14  their employer may in the future consider a project

         15  which would require an appearance before the

         16  Commission, before taking part in that project, as

         17  you know, you should seek guidance from the

         18  Conflicts of Interest Board.

         19                 And just one other. To the two

         20  candidates, Ms. Nielsen and Mr. Stuckey, you're

         21  filling a vacant term that expires this year, the

         22  resolution had asked for a full term for December

         23  2006, but because of our terms, we cannot vote for

         24  something that's beyond our term and we have to run

         25  for reelection this year, so while we all plan to be
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          2  back here, we cannot just go ahead and vote for

          3  something that is supposed to happen beyond the

          4  expiration of our term, so unfortunately we cannot

          5  do the second part of the resolution that's asking

          6  that you be considered for something in the future,

          7  that by technically by law we cannot allow that to

          8  happen. So, it's not anything to do with your

          9  records, I'm sure that when you come back it will be

         10  a quick meeting, and as long as you don't vote for

         11  any art that's totally abhorrent to our taste.

         12                 With that, we're going to thank you

         13  for appearing. Actually, can we vote on this part

         14  now and then the rest later?

         15                 MR. O'MALLEY: We don't have anybody

         16  up here now.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: We don't have

         18  anybody up here, then we'll vote when we have

         19  someone from recordkeeping here. But I want to thank

         20  you for appearing, and I look forward to hearing

         21  good things about your tenure on your commission.

         22                 You can stay if you want to hear the

         23  vote, but I'm pretty sure it's not anything that you

         24  have to concern yourself with.

         25                 MR. KIM: Thank you.
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          2                 MR. STUCKEY: Thank you very much.

          3                 MS. NIELSEN: Thank you.

          4                 MS. SHELTON: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay, the next

          6  candidate is Matthew Daus. Is he in the building?

          7  There you go, okay.

          8                 Okay, we're here today, Matthew Daus

          9  is being considered for the Taxi and Limousine

         10  Commission, which was created by Local Law 12 of

         11  1971. Is required to continue further development

         12  and improve taxi and limousine service in the City.

         13                 In addition, TLC shall adopt and

         14  establish an overall public transportation policy

         15  governing taxi, coach, limousine and wheelchair

         16  accessible van services within the City.

         17                 TLC is also responsible for

         18  establishing certain rate standards and criteria for

         19  the licensing of vehicles, drivers and chauffeurs,

         20  owners and operators engaged in such services.

         21                 TLC consists of nine members

         22  appointed by the Mayor, all with the advice and

         23  consent of the Council, five of said members, one

         24  resident from each of the five boroughs of the City

         25  are recommended for appointment by a majority vote
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          2  of the Council -- oh, by a majority of Council

          3  members of the respected borough.

          4                      TLC members are appointed for

          5  terms of seven years and can serve to the

          6  appointment until the appointment and qualification

          7  of a successor.

          8                 The Mayor may remove any such member

          9  for cause upon stated charges. The Mayor designates

         10  one member of the TLC to act as the Chairperson and

         11  Chief Executive Officer. The Chairperson shall be in

         12  charge of the agency having the full responsibility

         13  to manage its operations.

         14                 The Chairperson has a full-time

         15  position and as such receives annual compensation in

         16  the amount of $152,500 as said by the Mayor.

         17                 Other members of the TLC shall not be

         18  entitled to compensation.

         19                 Okay, well, we have Mr. Daus, who is

         20  the -- I forget your title, Mr. Daus. You're the

         21  Executive Director now.

         22                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Commissioner and

         23  Chair of the TLC.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Commissioner and

         25  Chair of the TLC.
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          2                 Okay, can you raise your right hand

          3  and be sworn in?

          4                 MR. O'MALLEY: Do you solemnly swear

          5  and affirm the testimony you're about to give to the

          6  Committee is the truth and the whole truth?

          7                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I do.

          8                 MR. O'MALLEY: Please state your name

          9  for the record.

         10                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Matthew W. Daus.

         11                 MR. O'MALLEY: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: We've been joined

         13  by Council Member Helen Sears from Queens.

         14                 Good morning.

         15                 This is not your opening statement,

         16  is it?

         17                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Yes, it is.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: It is? Okay.

         19                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: If I could seek

         20  the indulgence of the Committee, I do have a lot to

         21  talk about, and if it's okay with you, I'd like to

         22  read the testimony.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Go right ahead.

         24                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Okay, thank you.

         25                 Good morning, Chairman Comrie,
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          2  members of the Committee of Rules, and members from

          3  other committees, it's good to see you here today. I

          4  am honored to appear before you to testify, not only

          5  about my qualifications position, but also our

          6  accomplishments and proposed plans for the future

          7  for the New York City Taxi and Limousine Commission.

          8                 I would also like to thank publicly

          9  Mayor Bloomberg for the confidence he has expressed

         10  by nominating me for reappointment as TLC

         11  Commissioner and Chair.

         12                 It has truly been my privilege to

         13  serve the City of New York for almost a decade now.

         14  I joined City government, after engaging in the

         15  private practice of law in 1994.

         16                 My career in public service began as

         17  a prosecutor for the New York City Commission on

         18  Human Rights, where I represented the agency in the

         19  enforcement and mediation of the discrimination

         20  complaints involving employment, housing and public

         21  accommodation.

         22                 These discrimination complaints, as

         23  many of you might know, are based upon race,

         24  religion, ethnicity, disability and sexual

         25  orientation.
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          2                 This cause is very, very important to

          3  me, and I have continued my work in the little free

          4  time that I have outside of the City government as

          5  president of a not-for-profit corporation known as

          6  CURE, which stands for Community Understanding for

          7  Racial and Ethnic Equality.

          8                 CURE is a group that seeks to

          9  eradicate discrimination through enhancing

         10  communication and education among divers groups in

         11  the City.

         12                 After serving at the Human Rights

         13  Commission, I was appointed General Counsel at the

         14  New York City Community Development Agency, also

         15  known as CDA. It's no longer in existence.

         16                 At CDA, my responsibilities included

         17  the supervision of all procurement activities

         18  involving government funding of anti-poverty

         19  programs through social service contracts awarded to

         20  community organizations.

         21                 I was actively involved in

         22  successfully merging CDA and the former Department

         23  of Youth Services into the agency that's now known

         24  as the Department of Youth and Community

         25  Development.
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          2                 After serving at DYCD, I was then

          3  appointed Special Counsel, for the New York City

          4  Trade Waste Commission, which is now known as New

          5  York City Business Integrity Commission.

          6                 In this position I was responsible

          7  for assisting in the formation and organization of

          8  this newly created regulatory agency which is

          9  designed to eliminate corruption within the private

         10  sanitation industry.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Commissioner?

         12                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I appreciate you

         14  wanting to do this, but could you skip to the

         15  present?

         16                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Okay.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Because we have

         18  this stuff and no one has any concerns about your

         19  qualifications or achievements.

         20                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Sure.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I think you want

         22  to kind of put out your vision.

         23                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Sure.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: So if you could

         25  just go with that, because unfortunately we don't
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          2  have a lot of time.

          3                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Okay, sure.

          4                 So then I went to the TLC and the

          5  rest is history. I've been there since 1996. I do

          6  think it's important, Mr. Chairman, if possible, to

          7  briefly elaborate on I guess what I set out to do in

          8  2001, which is why the Council confirmed me in the

          9  first place, because I think the vision that I set

         10  forth there is consistent in what we're doing. We're

         11  well on our way towards meeting our goals, and I

         12  wanted to lay out the most possible facts and

         13  information for members of the Committee who aren't

         14  on transportation and don't know what we do. I'll

         15  try to breeze through it.

         16                 Two years ago we set out to basically

         17  accomplish three things: To do something in the

         18  realm of enforcement that was new and different,

         19  especially in the unlicensed industry, the people

         20  who don't bother to get TLC licenses.

         21                 Number two, we want to do something

         22  with customer service. I think generically a lot has

         23  been done over the last five to six years in terms

         24  of enhancing the quality of taxicab service, the

         25  cabs are newer, bigger, they're cleaner, they're
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          2  better, the drivers are better as a result of

          3  various reforms. What we really set out to do was to

          4  try to deal with our drivers and license bases and

          5  business owners as customers as well. So, we

          6  redefined customer service not only to include the

          7  riding public, which is very important, but also the

          8  people who come before our agency.

          9                 And, also, we set as our third goal,

         10  outreach to the communities, to the licensees, to

         11  the drivers. And I believe that, first of all, we've

         12  accomplished many of these objectives, and we're

         13  certainly well on our way towards further

         14  achievements.

         15                 In terms of preserving, the best way

         16  to preserve the value of a license, whether it's a

         17  driver's license, a vehicle license, or business

         18  license, is to make sure that it means something.

         19  Not only in terms of enforcing the high standards,

         20  whether it be criminal background checks, drug

         21  testing, all the things that the TLC does, but also

         22  to aggressively enforce against people who don't

         23  bother to come and get a livery license, a taxicab

         24  driver's license.

         25                 But most of our enforcement efforts
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          2  have been focused on that front, and we've made

          3  considerable, we put considerable effort into

          4  putting new enforcement initiatives together, such

          5  as Operation Street Hail, and you know, we've also

          6  started, we've tripled our MMR targets for

          7  initiating padlock proceedings against unlicensed

          8  car service bases.

          9                 And in terms of the future, what

         10  we're looking to accomplish in that area is to now

         11  start going, in terms of enforcement, going after

         12  those two licensed bases that aren't doing the right

         13  thing. The irresponsible business owners that

         14  dispatch unlicensed drivers who pose a threat to the

         15  public and operate while they're on suspension,

         16  don't get their vehicles inspected, and we've

         17  already started efforts recently on Staten Island

         18  and other parts of the five boroughs, and they're

         19  well underway.

         20                 So, now we've dealt with in a large

         21  sense a lot of the unlicensed operation, the

         22  programs are in place, they're working. We're going

         23  to step them up and do more with the Police

         24  Department and other entities. But now we're also

         25  going to start holding licensed car services and
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          2  there are few of them out there who aren't doing the

          3  right thing, that paint the broad brush and make

          4  everybody look bad.

          5                 The second goal is customer service,

          6  and my testimony outlines all the things that we've

          7  done.

          8                 Yellow cabs are bigger and better

          9  than they've ever been before, and they're cleaner

         10  and safer than they've ever been before. The

         11  inspection passage rate at our vehicle inspection

         12  facility has reached an all-time high. Complaints

         13  have been declining significantly over the last two

         14  years and revocations have been declining.

         15                 We attribute that to a lot of the

         16  enforcement work that we've been doing and the point

         17  systems that we have in place.

         18                 We also feel, I strongly feel that

         19  any enforcement that we do has to be coupled with

         20  positive reinforcement of the overwhelming majority

         21  of drivers to do the right thing.

         22                 To that end, one of the first things

         23  I did when I was appointed chair was to establish

         24  what's known as a driver recognition program. Not

         25  only do we give out awards to the people who get
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          2  compliments from members of the public, but we also

          3  develop what's called a Safe Driver Program, which

          4  allows them to obtain 15 percent insurance discounts

          5  for exemplary driving over and above what the law

          6  provides.

          7                 We reduced waiting time at our court

          8  significantly, by from over three hours to under 30

          9  minutes to administrative reforms that we put into

         10  place.

         11                 We also tackled and solved

         12  administratively to the benefit of our licensees a

         13  problem known as March Madness, which members of the

         14  Transportation Committee know well, where in the

         15  past thousands and thousands of licensees would

         16  converge on our facilities, often waiting out in the

         17  cold for hours in the middle of the night in March

         18  to get into the TLC's doors. We solved that problem.

         19  We solved that problem by putting an appointment

         20  system in place, which seems to have worked so well

         21  in reducing foot traffic that we're now looking and

         22  exploring ways to which we can have licensing by

         23  appointment for all drivers, so this way you can

         24  call us, tell us when you want to come in and get a

         25  license, and we'll bend over backwards to make sure
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          2  you are seen before anybody else. And to honor and

          3  prioritize those people who make appointments with

          4  us is something that we tried in Staten Island that

          5  worked very, very well.

          6                 Four programs that we put into place

          7  have also been designed to make it easier to get a

          8  license without sacrificing our standards.

          9                 I will be happy to elaborate on them,

         10  if you wish, if you have questions, but briefly it's

         11  called the "Expediter Licensing Program," the

         12  "Welcome Back Program," "EZ-License Program" and

         13  "Livescan." All of these things have made it

         14  quicker and easier to get a TLC license, and under

         15  these programs you can get a license in a matter of

         16  days, whereas a few years ago it would take up to

         17  four to six weeks, if not two months.

         18                 So, those are the accomplishments

         19  that we set out to, this is what we set out to do,

         20  and we're happy to report that there's still more

         21  work to be done, but this is a major step in the

         22  right direction.

         23                 A third promised goal, the last goal

         24  that we promised to accomplish, was to reach out and

         25  communicate with all levels of our industries and to
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          2  the communities of the City of New York.

          3                 I am pleased that we are more

          4  accessible now to the riding public and to our

          5  licensees than ever before. The number of hits on

          6  our website has increased from 76,000 in Fiscal '99

          7  to 1.3 million over the last fiscal year.

          8                 Also, the public can learn about

          9  services and license bases that are available in

         10  their areas now, and most importantly, for our

         11  licensees, they can now actually process certain

         12  transactions through the computer, which has reduced

         13  foot traffic significantly at our facilities which

         14  allows us to do more with less staff.

         15                 Our Correspondence Unit that we

         16  created has led to a 98 percent response rate. We

         17  respond to every letter and e-mail that we receive

         18  within ten business days, in 98 percent of the time

         19  over the last two years, as a result of some

         20  internal reorganizations. And we are now in the

         21  process of implementing the 311 hot line, as I

         22  discussed with the Transportation Committee.

         23                 I'm a true believer in hands-on

         24  management. We started a program at the TLC which I

         25  believe is unique in all of the City. It's called
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          2  HOME, and it stands for the Hands On Management

          3  Experience.

          4                 This unique outreach program is

          5  designed to engage all of our TLC managers in a

          6  greater understanding of not only the functions of

          7  the agency, but also the industries that we license.

          8  To this end, all of our managers and myself, all

          9  deputy commissioners, are trained to learn and

         10  perform the work of all of our employees, both

         11  within and without their departments.

         12                 Outside of the agency, and some of

         13  the Council members here know this, because they've

         14  seen it with their own eyes, the TLC has increased

         15  its attendance at Community Board, Civic and Town

         16  Hall meetings to hear and respond to community

         17  concerns about our licensees.

         18                 In order to remain in touch with all

         19  aspects of the businesses that we regulate, the TLC

         20  now holds periodic driver focus groups where I meet

         21  individually with random drivers, and we've actively

         22  utilized our industry-specific advisory boards. We

         23  have advisory boards for each of the seven

         24  industries that we regulate.

         25                 This outreach clearly has led to
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          2  numerous positive changes at the agency and is

          3  responsible for many of the reforms.

          4                 We've also demonstrated our

          5  commitment as being a prospective partner in City

          6  government unlike the TLC has ever done before.

          7                 Two examples: After 9/11, and our

          8  headquarters are located three blocks south of the

          9  Trade Center site, we helped the City and the public

         10  and its industries after 9/11 by participating in

         11  the overall recovery plan, but also we developed an

         12  industry-specific recovery plant for our industries,

         13  which I'm pleased to report that standing here now

         14  two years later we have caused our industries to

         15  recover from economic harm suffered by the aftermath

         16  of 9/11 more quickly than any other industry in this

         17  City of New York has recovered. And, of course, we

         18  wish them a speedy recovery.

         19                 A lot of the programs and policies

         20  that we put into place are partly responsible for

         21  this industry rebounding so quickly. And that was

         22  our number one priority, after being in Office for

         23  two to three weeks, this major catastrophe happened

         24  and it just totally shifted our gears.

         25                 And number two, some of you,
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          2  especially in Queens, might remember that there was

          3  a bus strike last year, and there was also a

          4  threatened Transit strike, and we helped to

          5  formulate and implement and coordinate all of our

          6  industries to help out and get people where they

          7  needed to go.

          8                 Fortunately, we didn't have a transit

          9  strike at the end of 2002, but there was a

         10  seven-week transit bus strike that occurred in

         11  Queens, and working closely with the industry we

         12  helped to organize the drivers of these vans and

         13  livery vehicles to get over 100,000 commuters per

         14  day to where they needed to go, and we're proud of

         15  those efforts.

         16                 There are many important ongoing

         17  projects at the TLC, which I would like to complete.

         18  These initiatives and some new challenges are

         19  consistent with the initial vision, as I said, that

         20  I outlined in 2001.

         21                 In terms of moving forward with

         22  service to the riding public, we're now midway

         23  through the environmental review process, we're

         24  contemplating the sale of additional taxicab

         25  medallions. We've been designated lead agency by the
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          2  Council and the Mayor's Office, and we're working on

          3  that project and we'd like to finish that.

          4                 Another priority project is enhancing

          5  service to the riding public through accessible

          6  for-hire vehicle service.

          7                 As part of the TLC's ongoing

          8  implementation of its regulations, we are

          9  encouraging the licensure of more for-hire bases

         10  that specialize in demand responsive minivan

         11  service. Accessibility is one of the most, if not

         12  the most important issue at this time for the TLC,

         13  and we are going to work very closely with the

         14  Council, the Speaker, Council Member Margarita

         15  Lopez, and the entire industry to make this happen

         16  as soon as possible.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

         18  Lopez wanted to question you, but she ran out of

         19  time, so Commissioner, in the light of time --

         20                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Okay.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: And I don't want

         22  you to lose your vote because you're going on too

         23  long.

         24                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Okay.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: And we do have to
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          2  move on so I'm going to cut you off at this time.

          3                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Okay.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Respectfully. I

          5  don't mean to denigrate you at all, your record of

          6  public service, I haven't had any problems with

          7  access or accessibility or conversations with you,

          8  but I know some members do want to talk to you.

          9                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Sure.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: So why don't we

         11  proceed.

         12                 Council Member Sears. And then, okay,

         13  Council Member Sears, Liu, Katz and Gentile.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you very

         15  much, Mr. Chair.

         16                 Actually, I just wanted a comment to

         17  make on behalf of Mr. Daus' renomination.

         18                 You know, this industry has had

         19  problems throughout the years, many, many problems,

         20  and since Mr. Daus has taken the position, there has

         21  been the strongest effort made to correct those

         22  wrongs that prevailed in this industry, and I

         23  heartily hope and I believe you will, is to approve

         24  his renomination.

         25                 He's honest and admits that there's
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          2  much more to do, and we on the Transportation

          3  Committee know that there is a great deal to be

          4  done, but every effort is being made to do that.

          5                 Thank you for the time. I truly

          6  appreciate it.

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you,

          8  Council Member Sears.

          9                 Council Member Liu.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you, Madam

         11  Chair.

         12                 In my role as Chair of the Council's

         13  Committee on Transportation I've had the opportunity

         14  and the pleasure to work closely with Matthew Daus

         15  over the last year and a half on issues pertaining

         16  to providing all New Yorkers with the transportation

         17  that they so desire, and I know that there are a

         18  multitude of issues that we are attempting to tackle

         19  at the same time, but I want to assure my colleagues

         20  in the Council and the members of this Committee

         21  that it's my opinion that Matthew Daus has been very

         22  forthcoming in his opinions, in his analysis of the

         23  issues, and in his desire to work closely with our

         24  body here in the Council. And, so, I would urge the

         25  members of this Committee to confirm this
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          2  appointment for Matthew Daus.

          3                 Chairman and Commissioner Daus has

          4  been thoughtful on the issues. More so than that I

          5  have participated with him in many community events

          6  that I would not consider mandatory or require for

          7  any member of the Commission, much less the Chairman

          8  of the Commission. We have participated in community

          9  debates, we have been informed where people who are

         10  irate with the system, both consumers as well as

         11  providers in the system have complained, and in many

         12  cases rightfully so. We have marched alongside each

         13  other in parades that no other elected or public

         14  officials would be seen in and, so, I would, I

         15  praise him for his efforts in not only addressing

         16  the issues that directly pertain to ground

         17  transportation in the City of New York, but actually

         18  making an active effort in reaching out to the

         19  communities, many of whom are new American

         20  communities, who are part of the taxi and livery

         21  industry that we have here in the City.

         22                 So, members of the Committee, I urge

         23  you to reappoint Matthew Daus. Thank you.

         24                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member
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          2  Katz.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I just have a

          4  statement, but before I do, I know Margarita Lopez

          5  is not here and I know she wanted to ask something

          6  about this; can you go over the access for the

          7  disabled taxicabs and the plans we have and also the

          8  time line of that?

          9                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Absolutely. I'll

         10  be very brief because I don't want to lose any more

         11  votes. I want to thank everybody for their comments

         12  and I look forward to hopefully working with you.

         13                 We have a three-part plan, and, you

         14  know, there are clearly, you know, a lot of people

         15  who in the disability community, and I had a good

         16  conversation with Margarita Lopez yesterday, there

         17  are some people that disagree with the path that

         18  we're taking, but I've been very consistent from day

         19  one as to what I believe is the best way, without

         20  putting people out of business, to also make sure

         21  that we get accessible service to disabled New

         22  Yorkers who quite frankly deserve this service.

         23                 The ADA had exempted taxicabs from

         24  being accessible years ago when it was passed. I

         25  feel very strongly that the TLC's efforts going
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          2  above and beyond what federal law requires are

          3  admirable.

          4                 What we're doing in terms of a time

          5  line, first of all, we built a solid foundation on

          6  which we can build on. Not only in the black car

          7  industry but also in the livery industry. I'm

          8  pleased to report that our efforts in trying to get

          9  specialty for-hire vehicle car service bases

         10  licensed is the best way to go. We don't need to

         11  have every licensed car service base on the street

         12  corner having four or five accessible vehicles.

         13  Given the fact that we estimate that probably, based

         14  prior census data, 60,000 wheelchair users in the

         15  City of New York out of 8 million people, we believe

         16  that the demand does not require every single base

         17  have an accessible vehicle. The law that was passed

         18  allows for each base to respond to any demand or any

         19  phone calls by contacting with other bases. In order

         20  for a system like that to work under the law you

         21  need to have a few bases out there that have maybe a

         22  small fleet of accessible vehicles. This way, if you

         23  call ABC car service on your street corner and say I

         24  want an accessible vehicle, they will have a

         25  contract with maybe, you know, XYZ Corporation,
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          2  well, they'll call them and they'll dispatch an

          3  accessible vehicle.

          4                 I'm proud to report that despite

          5  overwhelming challenges, including the

          6  unavailability of insurance on the voluntary market,

          7  and the extraordinary amount of money it takes to

          8  retrofit these vehicles, because they are not built

          9  off the assembly line ready for accessible use, we

         10  have partnered with the head of a private insurance

         11  company and some entrepreneurs, and today a base

         12  application was approved by the TLC and submitted to

         13  the Council for review, it's called "Rides For All,"

         14  this is a livery base stationed in Queens, and

         15  that's our first step towards providing accessible

         16  service to the public.

         17                 There's also a couple of other bases

         18  that are looking to serve the livery community,

         19  including Golden Touch, also known as Symphony,

         20  which already implemented the law in the black car

         21  industry.

         22                 Last year the black car industry was

         23  ready to implement the law and it did, and our

         24  ongoing implementation efforts lead us to believe

         25  that we're about 25 percent the way through the
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          2  livery industry.

          3                 But we need the community, the

          4  disability community, to know that these services

          5  are available. So, in a nutshell, there are 55

          6  vehicles based upon a recent survey that we did in

          7  the livery industry, and this is subject to

          8  verification, we're physically going to send our

          9  inspectors to see these vehicles and make sure that

         10  they're road worthy. There were 76 car service bases

         11  that have 55 vehicles. We're working on specialty

         12  bases. We already have one that's licensed, Rides

         13  For All is coming to your attention today, and

         14  hopefully we'll get it in at the Stated today.

         15                 Number two, taxicabs. As you know, we

         16  passed a law with the Council providing for 81

         17  accessible medallions. I think that is a good step

         18  in the right direction for getting more accessible

         19  service in the yellow industry.

         20                 I'm pleased to report that the few

         21  vehicles that are accessible in the yellow cab

         22  industry have performed quite well. Their inspection

         23  rates are much better than most vehicles.

         24                 In fact they're passing inspection

         25  more frequently than others, and, number three, our
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          2  long-term plan which is very important, in order to

          3  solve this problem going forth into the future, we

          4  need to get the price of insurance down.

          5                 The way you do that is by, in my

          6  opinion, getting the private industry to

          7  manufacturer off the assembly line a purpose built

          8  accessible vehicle.

          9                 We entered into an agreement with

         10  NYSERDA, the New York State Energy Research

         11  Development Agency, and they've allocated close to a

         12  half million dollars, and we're going to have an RFP

         13  where manufacturers are going to bid on putting

         14  together a framework for accessible purpose built

         15  clean air vehicle which five, four, three years from

         16  now hopefully, will pave the way toward their almost

         17  hopefully all vehicles being cheaper, having

         18  affordable insurance and being accessible. But right

         19  now we just want to be able to provide, Council

         20  Member, enough vehicles to serve the 60,000

         21  estimated wheelchair users in the City.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I just wanted to

         23  get something for the record, since I know that the

         24  Council was interested in this as well, but if you

         25  can get to us something sort of in writing and

                                                            69

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  figure out, something that establishes the criteria,

          3  establishes the time line, and stuff like that, I

          4  think that would be very helpful. If that's okay,

          5  Mr. Chair?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Sure.

          7                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Sure.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I just also want

          9  to say Commissioner Daus has been extremely

         10  responsive to my office. Any time we've ever needed

         11  the Commissioner, any time we've ever needed the

         12  TLC, they have been extremely responsive.

         13                 My only complaint is I would appoint

         14  him forever if he could get the taxicabs to stop

         15  telling Joan Rivers to tell me to fasten my

         16  seatbelts. I mean, where does that come from?

         17                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, it's gone.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: It's gone.

         19                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: So does that mean

         20  I have a lifetime appointment?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: You're great.

         22                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: They're gone. We

         23  got rid of them last year.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Oh, my God. All

         25  right, I thank you again.
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          2                 The Commissioner has been very

          3  responsive to our office and I appreciate all of his

          4  help in the past and look forward to his continued

          5  assistance in the future.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Yes.

          7                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Thank you, Council

          8  member.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay. Council

         10  Member Gentile, Filder, Oddo, Clarke and Weprin, in

         11  that order.

         12                 Can we be very brief, members, and

         13  Commissioner? Because it's like 12:10.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: I'll be very

         15  brief, Mr. Chairman, and it's just a statement.

         16                 I also want to say good things about

         17  Commissioner Daus. He happens to be a constituent of

         18  mine, and in fact, his house is about a stone's

         19  throw from my district office in Bayridge, but

         20  beyond that, the Commissioner in my short tenure

         21  here in the Council has been very, very responsive

         22  to my office. He's contacted us, we've had several

         23  problems with some drivers and some complications

         24  and he's been there for us, and has been extremely

         25  responsive.
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          2                 As we've heard today, he's also got

          3  great vision and a record of accomplishment. So, I

          4  think that's the kind of person we want to have in

          5  government and continue to have in government.

          6                 So, I congratulate Mayor Bloomberg

          7  for putting this reappointment before us, and I

          8  trust that the Committee will do the right thing.

          9  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

         11                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

         13  Fidler.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I will also be

         15  brief.

         16                 Councilman Gentile, he may live in

         17  your district now but I think he grew up in mine,

         18  and I want to also add words of support for the

         19  Commissioner. I found him to be extraordinarily

         20  responsive. The issues in my part of the City are

         21  probably different from the meat and potatoes issues

         22  that face the TLC and he's been both creative and

         23  responsive. He's brought his entire staff down to my

         24  district office to deal with issues. And

         25  particularly I have found on licensing of base
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          2  stations, which is probably the most important

          3  function that a TLC has as it relates to my

          4  community, they have listened very, very carefully

          5  to what we've had to say, and to the complaints that

          6  the community has had, and they put pressure on

          7  those base stations to conform with the law. So, I

          8  whole heartily support his renomination.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: We've been joined

         10  by Speaker Gifford Miller.

         11                 SPEAKER MILLER: Mr. Chairman, how are

         12  you?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

         14  Oddo. Minority Leader Oddo, good afternoon.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

         16  Chairman.

         17                 The livery industry on Staten Island

         18  is vital and unique. It's vital because essentially

         19  we have no mass transportation system, so Mrs.

         20  Magilicutti gets to the market by calling a livery

         21  cab. It's unique in that 90 percent of the livery

         22  are fleets and ten percent are owner/operated. I

         23  think it's directly opposite that in the other

         24  boroughs. But we have unique situations and unique

         25  problems on Staten Island. I just wanted to add my
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          2  voice, I've known that since we both were staff

          3  people, and I think the reason why he's such a good

          4  Commissioner is he continues with the staff

          5  mentality, which is a hands-on approach, in essence

          6  on detail.

          7                 I wish every Commissioner, every

          8  staff person, every elected official was as

          9  responsive as this Commissioner is, and I

         10  wholeheartedly support him and I look forward to

         11  continuing to work with him.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

         13  Clarke.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

         15  Chair.

         16                 I just want to really add my voice.

         17  My experience with Commissioner Daus is that he is

         18  really an aggressive problem-solver, and in a

         19  diverse City like ours where so many needs and so

         20  many different concerns, he's one who looks for the

         21  ability to provide for everyone the most agreeable

         22  solution to challenges, and it is no doubt the

         23  transportation in the City of New York has become

         24  challenging and challenging with each generation

         25  that has come through and has really created more
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          2  and more in terms of enterprise in our City.

          3                 So, I just really wanted to add my

          4  voice to say that Commissioner Daus has really been

          5  a breath of fresh air, in terms of his ability to

          6  listen and come up with viable solutions to many of

          7  the challenges that I think throughout the City many

          8  of our constituents are facing, in terms of being

          9  able to be mobile throughout their communities and

         10  even into Manhattan.

         11                 So, I just wanted to add my voice and

         12  encourage my colleagues to confirm Commissioner

         13  Daus.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

         15  Weprin.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: I also want to

         17  add my voice in recommending the reconfirmation of

         18  our outstanding Commissioner and Chair Matt Daus.

         19                 I worked very closely with him in the

         20  proposal with the Finance Division on the adding of

         21  additional taxi medallions. It took us an extra year

         22  to get it right I think, but the City Council had

         23  proposed obviously as part of their budget response,

         24  not this current fiscal year, the past fiscal year,

         25  but the fiscal year before, and clearly it was an
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          2  evolutionary process and we worked very closely in

          3  adding the 900 medallions that were part of the '04

          4  budget that we just passed, and we worked very

          5  closely on bringing the sides all together, working

          6  closely with the industry, as well as the public,

          7  and I know a number of people complained about, and

          8  I think they're complaining right now as we're

          9  speaking about only having nine percent handicap

         10  accessible cars; however, I think it has to be

         11  pointed out that this is the first time ever that

         12  there have been any mandatory disability accessible

         13  cabs and it is a step in the right direction and

         14  really I think we all agree that in the future that

         15  we should have more and a much larger percentage and

         16  strive to get to the goal where it's 100 percent.

         17  But there are a number of other issues associated

         18  with that that I won't get into but I just want to

         19  praise the Chairman and Commissioner for his

         20  outstanding work.

         21                 He's been very responsive to me

         22  personally and to my office whenever we've asked,

         23  and even sometimes when we haven't asked, and I just

         24  would like to strongly recommend his confirmation.

         25  Thank you.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DAUS: Council Member

          4  Reyna.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you, Mr.

          6  Chair.

          7                 I just wanted to add to all the

          8  wonderful comments, how true it has been that our

          9  Commissioner from the TLC has been very responsive

         10  to the needs of our districts whenever we've called

         11  upon him, and despite the perception that's out

         12  there, I think we're all working together to making

         13  sure that we do improve and only by doing so in

         14  working together can we accomplish everything you've

         15  set out to do, and we welcome your reappointment.

         16                 I also wanted to just touch base on

         17  previous conversations concerning a bill of rights

         18  manual, or some type of manual concerning industry

         19  drivers to know what the dos and don'ts or

         20  understand better what it is you want them, or how

         21  you want them to be responsible drivers so that, we

         22  can avoid or reduce the amount of misunderstandings

         23  that can get out of hand.

         24                 As we saw most recently the latest

         25  protest that took place, I think there had to be a
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          2  lot of miscommunication and we just want to be able

          3  to ensure that we work continuously together in

          4  order to improve and just stay away from

          5  controversy.

          6                 But I think you've done a good job in

          7  making sure that our drivers receive the attention

          8  they need, the safety they need and I only look

          9  forward to doing bigger and better things.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you,

         11  Council member. I'm going to cut you off because

         12  we're up against the clock.

         13                 MR. DAUS: Sorry. I know.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: And there's a

         15  housekeeping issue. We still have a person who would

         16  like to testify regarding your appointment.

         17                 The candidate, just to let you know

         18  there's a housekeeping issue. We know you've already

         19  contacted the Conflicts of Interest Board. We just

         20  want to remind you of the need to familiarize

         21  yourself with the new fundraising requirements. And

         22  it's 12:20 and we're supposed to start the session

         23  at 12:30, and there is a person that would like to

         24  speak regarding your appointment, so I hate to cut

         25  you off but I don't have a choice.
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          2                 MR. DAUS: That's okay.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: If you can just

          4  wait a few minutes?

          5                 Right now we have Mr. Lloyd Taylor

          6  from the New York Livery Base Owners and Drivers

          7  Association.

          8                 You can just sit at the first chair

          9  and turn off the red light to turn on the

         10  microphone.

         11                 MR. TAYLOR: I don't know how much

         12  time I have.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: You gave us a

         14  12-page statement, you know, can you just summarize

         15  it?

         16                 MR. TAYLOR: Yes. Good day, Chairman

         17  Leroy Comrie, and members of the New York City

         18  Council Rules and Privileges Elections Committee.

         19                 My name is Lloyd Taylor, president of

         20  New York Livery Base Owners and Drivers, a

         21  not-for-profit association representing 25 radio

         22  dispatch bases in Central Brooklyn, New York City.

         23                 We are a significant association and

         24  are blessed to have among our members a considerable

         25  number persons we can validly call industry

                                                            79

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  pioneers.

          3                 We are happy to announce publicly

          4  that my industry trade collaborators include United

          5  African Drivers and Base Owners Association, New

          6  York State Federation of Taxi Drivers, New York City

          7  For Hire Vehicle Group, Livery Owners Coalition of

          8  New York, and United As One TLC Owners Association.

          9                 This morning I am speaking in my

         10  individual capacity and for my association on the

         11  specifics of the appointment process.

         12                 Fortunately Mr. Daus is no would be

         13  Julius Caesar or John, The Baptist. I therefore am

         14  not here to praise or to bury him or even to be the

         15  unhappy recipient of any lady's vain request for his

         16  head on a platter. I had cause to remind some of our

         17  colleagues a few Mondays ago that such was the angst

         18  against Mr. Daus' bureaucratic ancestor, when he was

         19  appointed, industry leaders welcomed him as a breath

         20  of fresh air, even to the point where many felt it

         21  convenient to forget that in his significant role

         22  role as Deputy Commissioner for Legal Affairs, he

         23  was responsible for 15 or 18 pieces of rules that

         24  had the industry licensees in virtual turmoil in

         25  1998.
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          2                 Yet, it is only once that I ever

          3  heard someone ascribe the adjective wicked to him.

          4  That remark came from none other than his Deputy

          5  Allan Fromberg. The occasion was an award ceremony

          6  for licensees last year. When Mr. Daus inadvertently

          7  turned his back and was both out of earshot and

          8  eyesight, Allan Fromberg hastened to let those of us

          9  who would listen into a little known secret.

         10  "Commissioner Daus," he said in a lowered voice,

         11  "...plays a wicked piano."

         12                 Putting all jokes aside, I am sure it

         13  is common acceptance, if not understanding that all

         14  is not hunky-dory between TLC regulators and its

         15  licensees.

         16                 Moreover, the less honest and

         17  forthright we are in facing up to the current

         18  challenges that more than 40,000 FHV Taxi and

         19  Limousine Commission licenses encounter daily, the

         20  more likely that the inefficiencies, arising there

         21  from, would exacerbate the policy objectives of

         22  safety, service availability, consumer protection,

         23  profitability and so on.

         24                 From a regulatory standpoint, the

         25  real crux of the matter where the FHV industry is
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          2  concerned is the failure of regulators to appreciate

          3  that all the social, economic and political problems

          4  that face the city, exist in micro at the level of

          5  the industry.

          6                 What are some of these issues? Job

          7  creation, operating profitable firms, transforming

          8  small businesses into medium size entities,

          9  solidarity across ethnic groups, recovering from the

         10  devastating effects of September 11, 2002, road

         11  safety and traffic congestion; broadening social

         12  security base, promoting the economic independence

         13  of new Americans, mainstreaming marginalized

         14  businesses into he economic, commercial and

         15  financial fabric of the city, waging a counter

         16  attack on widening inequality, anchoring freedom in

         17  economic equality and making the city a more

         18  socially efficient nexus of private and public

         19  enterprise.

         20                 In that context the emerging ethos of

         21  regulation seemed to be a felt need to contain the

         22  movement and enterprise of thousand (sic) of new

         23  immigrants who struck the power elites in New York

         24  City, as a bunch of illegal irritants bent on

         25  disrupting the habits of the more quiet Americans.
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          2                 The goal seemed to be governed by one

          3  word - containment, just like I believe we have in

          4  the city's schools today. The positive side was that

          5  these people who could find no employment and

          6  opportunity except in menial tasks, were creating

          7  jobs for themselves, kith and kin and bringing the

          8  bacon home.

          9                 The crucial confirmation appointment

         10  question is this: What can we do to improve the

         11  efficiency of the Taxi and Limousine Commission and

         12  so as to give Mr. Daus a better than average chance

         13  of running with the ball for a touch down? We need

         14  to appreciate that if we do not give the new

         15  administrator a fair chance we may lose the moral

         16  authority to keep his feet to the fires of

         17  performance.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Mr. Taylor, we

         19  have your statement, which will be accepted into the

         20  record. Can you just do a summary, please?

         21                 MR. TAYLOR: Okay.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: We're up against

         23  a hard clock here. We have to be out of this room in

         24  seven minutes. And the Speaker has to go so we need

         25  to vote right now.
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          2                 MR. TAYLOR: I would just conclude by

          3  moving that the Committee take note of the caveat I

          4  offered today as part of the confirmation of Mr.

          5  Matthew Daus' appointment. Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I didn't hear it.

          7                 MR. TAYLOR: I would conclude by

          8  asking the Committee to take note of the caveat I

          9  offer today as part of the confirmation appointment.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: All right. Well,

         11  you have some very interesting issues in here and it

         12  clearly, as the association is changing and

         13  evolving, especially with members coming from other

         14  countries and other traditions, it's clear that the

         15  Taxi and Limousine Commission has to be amenable and

         16  available.

         17                 I think that you've heard the tone

         18  from the Council Members here. Most people feel that

         19  he has been responsive to members. We'll make sure

         20  that he's more responsive to anyone that comes to us

         21  to register an opinion, and we will make sure that

         22  this is given to the head of the Transportation

         23  Committee and we'll go through it line by line and

         24  get back to you.

         25                 And I want to thank you for your
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          2  patience. You were here at 10:30 when the meeting

          3  started, so I hate to cut you off but we're really

          4  out of time.

          5                 Thank you, Mr. Taylor.

          6                 At this point we have to proceed to a

          7  vote.

          8                 All right, we have to be careful

          9  about what we're voting on, members.

         10                 We are going to be voting on, let's

         11  do Chairman Daus first, and we'll couple -- no, we

         12  can't couple everything. We can't do the extension.

         13                 MR. O'MALLEY: Okay, the first round

         14  of voting will be for all the following resolutions:

         15                 M 655, and its accompanying

         16  resolution for Le Ann Shelton. There's a resolution

         17  to approve the first term for Ms. Nielsen. And the

         18  second resolution is to disapprove the second term

         19  which would start at January 2004 and end December

         20  31st at 2006.

         21                 There's a resolution accompanying M

         22  657 for Byron Kim. Resolution approving the first

         23  term for Mr. Stuckey, and disapproving the second

         24  term, same term, for Ms. Nielsen.

         25                 Resolution of approving the
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          2  appointment of Matthew Daus and a resolution

          3  approving the appointment of Carole Rimokh.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Just to put that

          5  in English, we are approving all people for the

          6  terms, we cannot deal with a term that is past our

          7  term as legislators. So, that's why we have to

          8  disapprove the two extensions.

          9                 So, if we can move to a vote.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Aye on all.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Perkins.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Aye on all.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Provenzano.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Aye on

         16  all.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: The Speaker Mr.

         18  Miller.

         19                 SPEAKER MILLER: Aye.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Quinn.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Aye.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Rivera.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Aye on all.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Reyna.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Aye on all.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Clarke.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Aye on all.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Aye on all.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Katz.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Aye on all.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Weprin.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Aye on all.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Oddo.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of 11 in the

         13  affirmative, zero in the negative, and no

         14  abstentions, the items are adopted.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay, now,

         16  there's a motion to file, it has to be read by

         17  Counsel Ed O'Malley, that we have to vote on also.

         18                 MR. O'MALLEY: Okay, we're filing M

         19  656 and 659. Those are for both of the second terms

         20  for Mr. Stuckey and Ms. Nielsen. And we're also

         21  filing M 658, which was for an appointment for Alice

         22  Acoch to the Art Commission which was withdrawn

         23  pursuant to the request of the Mayor.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Aye on all.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Speaker Mr. Miller.

          3                 SPEAKER MILLER: Aye.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Perkins.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Aye.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Provenzano.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Aye.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Quinn.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Aye.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Rivera.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Aye.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Reyna.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Aye.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Clarke.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Aye.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Aye.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Katz.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Aye.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Weprin.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Aye.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Oddo.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of 12 in the

         25  affirmative, zero in the negative, no abstentions,
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          2  all items are adopted. Council Members, please sign

          3  the Committee report.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: We will hold the

          5  vote open for those people, couple of people that

          6  are not here to vote.

          7                 I want to congratulate all of the

          8  candidates that have been appointed. I want to thank

          9  Mr. Taylor for coming down and bringing some

         10  necessary information before us, that we will make

         11  sure the Transportation Committee gets back to you

         12  on.

         13                 Thank you all.

         14                 (Hearing concluded at 12:31 p.m.)
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